From: Joe Saldana

To: Eloisa Mascorro

Cc: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra

Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 03/05/2024
Date: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 10:51:05 AM
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CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially
from unknown senders.

Thanks for reaching out, Eloisa.

The State of Washington Contract is a State Schedule.
There is no document as such as State schedule usage is allowed for FTA funded projects.

State Schedules

Q. Can my agency procure vehicles from another state’s contract?
A.Yes, an FTA grantee may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from any State’s cooperative procurement contract or schedule, if the
grantee’s state allows it.

Joe Saldana | Regional Sales Manager
Mobile: 510-303-0202

Email | il | www.gillig.com
HQ 510.264.5000 | Sales 510.785.1500 | Parts 800.735.1500 | Service 510.264.5073

GCILLIG
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From: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Sent: Tuesday, March 5, 2024 10:19 AM

To: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>; Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>
Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

Good morning Ms. Becerra,

| hope this email finds you well.

Question: We are starting the procurement process for the seven (7) CNG buses that Mr. Saldana has provided us with a quote letter. Our Purchasing
Department, has requested documentation that states that Texas is part of this contract or an agreement of some sort that Texas and the City of Laredo
can utilize this contract. I've look at the drive you sent us, but did not find anything or maybe | missed it. Do we have a document like of the sort?

Thank you,
Eloisa Mascorro
956-795-2288 Ext. 284

From: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 2:31 PM
To: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>; Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldan illig.com>

Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from
unknown senders.
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State Schedules




Q. Can my agency procure vehicles from another state’s contract?
A. Yes, an FTA grantee may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from any State's cooperative procurement contract or schedule, if the
grantee’s state allows it.
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Q. What is a State Cooperative Purchasing Contract?
A. A" State cooperative procurement schedule” (also known as a state schedule) means a cooperative contract between a State government or
and 1 or more vendors under which the vendors agree to provide an option to purchase rolling stock and related equipment to the State
government and any other participant, and the State government acts throughout the term of the contract as the lead procurement agency. The
contract term may be for an initial term of not more than two years and may include three optional extensions of one year each. The State
orocurement agency in such a procurement may charge participants in the contract no more than one percent of the total value of the contract.
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Bus Procurement Frequently Asked Questions

Guidance Disclaimer: These FAQs do not have the force and effect of law and are not meant to bind the public in any way. These FAQs are intended only to
provide clarity to the public regarding existing requirements under the law or agency policies. FTA recipients and subrecipients should refer to FTA's statutes
and regulations for applicable requirements.

Contract Adjustments

Q. Can an FTA recipient adjust a federally assisted contract to address price increases?

A. Yes. Under certain circumstances, FTA recipients may adjust existing contracts to address price increases. All recipients should take every
reasonable measure to control costs and be good stewards of Federal dollars wherever possible. The applicable Federal requirements on
adjusting existing contracts are contained in the OMB Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (“Uniform Requirements”, codified at 2 CFR Part 200). In certain circumstances, the OMB Uniform Requirements permit the parties with
an existing federally funded contract to modify the contract for several reasons, including price adjustments. When permitted to modify a
contract, FTA recipients are responsible, in accordance with good administrative practice and sound business judgment, for the settlement of all
contractual and administrative issues arising out of procurements. 2 CFR 200.318(k).

Whether a particular modification is permissible—and what Federal requirements apply—will depend on a variety of factors, including the terms
and conditions of that contract (e.g., change clauses, Producer Price Index adjustment clauses, and Consumer Price Index adjustment clauses);
applicable state, local, or tribal procurement law; the terms of a price adjustment; and the scope of the contract modification.

For example, before a recipient modifies a contract, it must perform a cost or price analysis if the modification will exceed the simplified
acquisition threshold (currently $250,000) (2 CFR 200.324(a)). If a modification will include profit for the vendor, the recipient must negotiate profit
as a separate element of the price (2 CFR 200.324(b)).

Related online FTA resources include:

e FTA Circular 4220.1F, Third Party Contracting Guidance
e FTA Circular 5010.1E, Award Management Requirements
e FTA Best Practices Procurement and Lessons Learned Manual

Q. In the event of an increase to a contract price, can a grantee seek additional Federal funding to cover the increase?

A. Yes, FTA formula funding programs and certain other Federal funding may be available to contribute funding to cover an increase in price due
to a contract modification. Local match requirements of the various programs would apply. For example, FTA's Urbanized Area Formula Program,
State of Good Repair Formula Program, and Rural Area Formula Program, along with the Federal Highway Administration’s flexible funding
programs eligible for public transportation projects, such as the Surface Transportation Block Grant and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
programs, may be available if the contract would be eligible under those respective programs.

Q. My agency entered a fixed-price contract. The bus manufacturer is now requesting to re-open the contract for a price-adjustment. Is
this permissible?

A. Whether a price adjustment to a fixed price contract would be permissible, or would be an impermissible cardinal change is a fact-specific
determination that will depend on all the relevant facts, such as applicable state, local, and tribal procurement law, the terms of any change
clause, whether or not the contract has a price adjustment clause, and the terms of the RFP.

Recipients should consider these factors and consult with their FTA Regional Offices on allowability prior to reopening a fixed-price contract,
particularly if there is no price adjustment clause.






Possible Actions to Accelerate Vehicle Delivery, Contain Costs and Risks

Q. What can transit agencies do to reduce engineering, supply chain, and financial costs on the bus manufacturing industry and help
address the issues of rising bus costs and delivery timelines?

A. Transit agencies have several options. For example, they can avoid excessive customizations, prescriptive design-based specifications, and
unnecessary bonding requirements. Agencies may consider:

* Issuing performance specifications rather than design specifications in RFPs, allowing manufacturers to compete to deliver the best
performing vehicle at a lower price without your agency prescribing how they are to achieve that performance.

* Performance-based specifications are a preferred procurement approach in OMB guidance and in FTA's third-party procurement circular
(4220.1F).

* Performance-based specifications may be easier to develop and evaluate for agency staff, which may result in a faster procurement cycle.

e Unduly restrictive, design-based specifications can run afoul of federal full and open competition requirements. E.g., 2 CFR 200.319(d)(1).

¢ Transit agencies also can procure off a state schedule or use a joint procurement with a shared technical specification.

e Since it was authorized in 2015 by Section 3019 of the FAST Act (P.L. 114-94), many transit agencies are procuring off state schedules, even
those not in their home state, to minimize their expenses in administering a procurement and get a more standardized bus at a better price
that is able to be manufactured quicker.

¢ On the payment side, progress payments are eligible for federal reimbursement and are a way to reduce manufacturers’ financing costs
associated with contract, which should be reflected in a lower price.

e Only require bonds or a letter of credit when necessary and at the minimum amount needed. FTA does not generally impose security
requirements for bus procurements. FTA only requires adequate security for buses and equipment when a transit agency makes advance
or progress payments with Federal funds in advance of receipt of the rolling stock.

Q. Why should transit agencies consider using a performance-based specification rather than design-based?
A. Performance specifications are based on the function and performance of a product or service under specified conditions. By contrast, design
specifications are based on the design of a product or service. Typical design specifications may include:

« Dimensions, materials to be used, commonly and competitively available components, and non-proprietary manufacturing methods.
As a result, design specifications tend to be far more detailed and prescriptive.

In short, performance specifications encourage competition and innovation and may minimize workload on the agency developing the technical
specifications within the RFP. Performance specifications place the greatest degree of responsibility on the contractor to deliver the promised
performance.

Performance specifications are a preferred procurement approach in the Uniform Requirements, e.g., 2 CFR 200.319(d)(1), and in FTA's third-party
procurement circular (4220.1F). Whether procuring a bus or vehicle component, performance-based specifications allow manufacturers to
compete to deliver the best-performing vehicles at a lower price without agencies prescribing how they are to achieve that performance.

Advance and Progress Payments

Q. Can an FTA grantee receive FTA reimbursement for an advance payment it makes to a transit vehicle manufacturer for a rolling
stock procurement prior to receipt of the vehicles?

A. Yes, if certain conditions are met. Advance payments (sometimes called mobilization payments) are payments made to a contractor, including
a transportation vehicle manufacturer, before the contractor incurs contract costs.

Pre-Award: A recipient may use local funds for advance payments before receiving an FTA grant. FTA formula grant programs usually come with
automatic authority to incur costs pre-award. However, if there is no automatic pre-award authority for the procurement, then to maintain
eligibility for FTA reimbursement after grant award, the recipient must obtain a letter of no prejudice or other pre-award authority from FTA
before making an advance payment using local funds.

Post-Award: After FTA grant award, a recipient may use FTA assistance to make advance payments under a bus contract before the contractor
has incurred costs under the contract if:

¢ The recipient can provide sound business reasons for doing so, such as a reduction in the cost of the contract as a result of the advance
payment and has obtained advance written concurrence from its FTA Regional Office.

* An essential pre-condition to FTA's concurrence is that the recipient must obtain adequate security from the contractor in the amount of the
advance payment. For a rolling stock procurement, adequate security for an advance payment typically takes the form of a performance
bond or a letter of credit.

Q. Can an FTA grantee using FTA funding receive FTA reimbursement for progress payments it makes to a transit vehicle manufacturer
for a rolling stock procurement prior to receipt of the vehicles?

A. Yes. Progress payments (sometimes called milestone payments) are payments made to the contractor prior to the completion of all contract
work. Progress payments are a common practice for construction contracts and railcar procurements, and are permissible for bus procurements.

A recipient may use local funds for progress payments before receiving an FTA grant and maintain eligibility for FTA reimbursement after grant
award if it has pre-award authority, or use FTA funds after FTA grant award, provided that (1) the recipient has sufficient written documentation
to substantiate the basis for making progress payments and the completion of the work for which progress payments are requested; and (2) the
recipient obtain adequate security from the contractor for the progress payments to safeguard against performance difficulties. For a rolling





stock procurement, adequate security typically takes the form of a performance bond or letter of credit, but may be other types of security
negotiated by the parties, such as receipt of title to the vehicles at an appropriate point in the manufacturing process. Recipients should consult
with their FTA Regional Offices on the adequacy of alternative forms of security other than a bond or letter of credit.

With respect to documentation for rolling stock contracts, tying progress payments to the percentage of completion of the contract is not
permissible. Permissible bases for rolling stock progress payments includes the completion of discrete activities necessary to the performance of
the contract. A recipient should be as specific as possible in its contract when describing the activities or milestones for which progress payments
will be made.

Q. Why does FTA encourage advance or progress payments for bus procurements?
A. FTA encourages the use of advance and progress payments to support a reasonable payment schedule for large capital purchases, and to
reduce the financing costs that transit agencies ultimately pay as part of the contract price. These payments are common for railcar contracts.

Q. How is FTA encouraging the use of advance or progress payments?

A. In the FY 2024 Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission Notice of Funding Opportunity, FTA is providing priority consideration to
applicants who commit to using advance or progress payments. FTA will weigh this priority consideration more heavily than other priority
considerations.

Bonding Requirements

Q. What are FTA’s bonding requirements for bus procurements?

A. FTA does not generally impose bonding requirements for bus procurements. FTA only requires a bond (or other form of security) for buses and
equipment when a transit agency makes advance or progress payments with Federal funds in advance of receipt of the rolling stock. The advance
or progress payments represent a Federal interest in the rolling stock that must be secured. Adequate security for advance and progress
payments for rolling stock typically takes the form of a performance bond or letter of credit. For progress payments, other types of security also
may be negotiated by the parties, such as transfer of title to the vehicles at an appropriate point in the manufacturing process upon receipt of a
progress payment. Recipients should consult with their FTA Regional Offices on the adequacy of alternative forms of security other than a bond
or letter of credit.

Transit agencies may choose to voluntarily impose bonding requirements for a bus procurement. Prior to doing so, agencies should consider the
potential benefits and drawbacks.

Bonding costs can be expensive, increasing the cost of each bus for the transit agency and financing costs for a manufacturer. Some
manufacturers have limited capacity to secure bonds simultaneously. Purchasing bonds also requires cash flow; thus, imposing bonding
requirements can force some manufacturers to forgo an RFP depending on their overall financial capabilities when the RFP is released.

ultimately passed on to the customer (transit agencies).

Customizations

Q. What are benefits of procuring a TVM's base model bus, without customizations?
A. Agencies procuring base model buses are more likely to have their buses delivered faster, at a lower unit cost, and with less risk than agencies
procuring highly customized buses.

Like any manufactured product, higher levels of bus customization can introduce greater risks to long-term reliability. Manufacturers cannot
rigorously test every custom configuration and may not have the technical history with many of the requested custom components. Presenting
higher risks for warranty coverage, and in turn, warranty costs. Thus, procuring a base model bus can lower both initial purchase costs as well as
long-term maintenance risks, and improve overall service reliability.

Q. How is FTA encouraging the use of base bus models.

A. In the FY 2024 Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission Notice of Funding Opportunity, FTA is giving priority consideration to
competitive program applicants that commit to undertaking a joint procurement with 3 or more total transit agencies or using a base vehicle
model and including a letter from the vehicle manufacturer certifying the applicant will use the manufacturer's base model. FTA will weigh this
priority consideration more heavily than other priority considerations.

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
procurement agency in such a procurement may charge participants in the contract no more than one percent of the total value of the contract.

State cooperative purchasing contracts or state schedules are subject to federal requirements, including, but not limited to, full and open
competition, no geographic preferences, Buy America, and bus testing, and must include all FTA required clauses and certifications with its
purchase orders issued under the State contract.

State cooperative purchase contracts are authorized by Section 3019 of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act of 2015.






Q. Can my agency procure vehicles from another state’s contract?
A. Yes, an FTA grantee may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from any State’s cooperative procurement contract or schedule, if the
grantee’s state allows it.

Q. If my agency purchases off a state schedule, can we still make changes and customize the vehicle?

A. It depends on the terms of the specific state schedule. Generally, State schedules include base model buses with a series of available add-on
options or configurations. Some customizations may not be allowable under the terms of the state schedule. A significant deviation from the
terms of the State schedule contract may make the order subject to allegations it is a “cardinal change” from the State’s original procurement.
Agencies should consult their FTA Regional Office to determine if their desired change is permissible.

Q. Should my agency use a State schedule to procure a new bus?
A. That depends on the circumstances and needs of your agency. State schedules offer both benefits and drawbacks.

Procuring from a State schedule can help an individual agency avoid the full stand-alone competitive RFP process while still meeting federal
procurement requirements. This can ease the workload on procurement teams, minimize administrative costs of undertaking a procurement,
allow agencies to place their bus orders much faster, and help smaller agencies benefit from “volume” discounts. State schedules also allow
agencies to easily compare pricing and specifications for base model buses, add-ons, and other configurations.

However, agencies procuring off a State schedule will not have the same control over a vehicle's technical specification as agencies that issue their
own competitive RFPs.

Joint Procurements

Q. What is a joint procurement and when should it be used for bus purchases?

A. Joint procurement is a method of contracting in which two or more purchasers agree from the outset to use a single solicitation document and
enter into a single contract with a vendor for delivery of property or services in a fixed quantity, even if expressed as a total minimum and total
maximum. A lead agency conducts the procurement on behalf of itself and others (usually smaller agencies that may not have the resources
needed to conduct a major procurement effectively). Unlike a State or local government purchasing schedule or contract, a joint procurement is
not drafted to accommodate the needs of other parties that may later choose to participate in the benefits of that contract.

Additional information on the limitations of Joint Procurements and when they are encouraged can be found in Section 3 of FTA's Best Practices
Procurement & Lessons Learned Manual.

Q. My agency is considering a joint bus procurement with another agency. Do we have to use the same technical specification in the
RFP? Do we have to state how many buses each agency intends to purchase through the RFP?

A. Yes. In joint bus procurements the term “joint procurement” means a method of contracting in which two or more purchasers agree from the
outset to use a single solicitation document and enter into a single contract with a vendor for delivery of property or services in a fixed quantity,
with a jointly developed technical specification as described in the RFP. Furthermore, while quantities in a contract may be expressed as a
minimum and potential maximum order, a recipient must limit its procurements to the amount of property and services required to meet its
reasonably expected needs without adding excess capacity for the purpose of assigning contract rights to others at a later date. FTA expects the
recipient to be able to justify the quantities it procures.

Partnership Provisions in Notices of Funding Opportunity for Competitive Bus Programs
for Low-No Vehicles

Q. When can a transit agency use the partnership provision under the Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission competitive
programs to satisfy federal bus procurement requirements without a competitive RFP?

A. As permitted under Federal public transportation law (49 U.S.C. 5339(b)(10), (c)(8)), an applicant proposing a low or no emission project under
the competitive Buses and Bus Facilities Program or the Low-No Program may include partnerships with other entities that intend to participate
in the implementation of the project, including, but not limited to, specific vehicle manufacturers, equipment vendors, owners or operators of
related facilities, or project consultants.

If an application that involves such a partnership is selected for funding, the project will be deemed to satisfy the requirement for a competitive
procurement under 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) for the named entities. Applicants are advised that any changes to the proposed partnership will require
FTA written approval, must be consistent with the scope of the approved project, and may necessitate a competitive procurement.

Q. My agency is applying for a Buses and Bus Facilities discretionary grant, not Low-No. Can my agency use the partnership provision?
A. No, an applicant must also submit the application under the Low-No program in order to use the partnership provision for the Buses and Bus
Facilities Program application. A competitive low- or no-emission bus project using the partnership provision can apply under the Low-No
Program or both programs, but not just the Buses and Bus Facilities Program.

Q. If a specific vendor is named as a partner in an application, and the application is selected for award, is the recipient bound to use
that vendor, or can other vendors be considered?

A. The applicant must use the vendor proposed in the application. Any changes to the proposed partnership will require FTA written approval,
must be consistent with the scope of the approved project, and may necessitate a competitive procurement.





Fleet Transition Plans

Q. Can my agency seek Low-No funding if it has not completed a zero-emission fleet transition plan?
A. The Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Competitive Program (49 U.S.C. 8 5339(b)) and the Low or No Emission Program (49 U.S.C. 8 5339(c))
include a requirement that any application for projects related to zero-emission vehicles include a Zero-Emission Transition Plan.

The Joint Office of Energy and Transportation offers technical assistance for transit agencies seeking to plan for and deploy clean transit buses.
Your agency should reach out if it needs assistance completing a transition plan.

Q. What is required to be included in a zero-emission fleet transition plan? And how can we pay for it?
A. The cost of developing a transition plan is not eligible under the Buses and Bus Facilities or Low-No Program, but is eligible under the planning
programs (49 U.S.C. § 5305) as well as under the urbanized area formula (49 U.S.C. § 5307) and rural area formula programs (49 U.S.C. 8 5311).

As defined in statute, 49 U.S.C. 5339(c)(3)(D), a Zero-Emission Transition Plan must at a minimum:

« Demonstrate a long-term fleet management plan with a strategy for how the applicant intends to use the current request for resources and
future acquisitions.

e Address the availability of current and future resources to meet costs for the transition and implementation.

« Consider policy and legislation impacting relevant technologies.

* Include an evaluation of existing and future facilities and their relationship to the technology transition.

o Describe the partnership of the applicant with the utility or alternative fuel provider.

e Examine the impact of the transition on the applicant's current workforce by identifying skill gaps, training needs, and retraining needs of
the applicant’s existing workers to operate and maintain zero-emission vehicles and related infrastructure and avoid displacement of the
existing workforce.

Additional information, resources, and a guidebook are available at FTA's fleet transition planning website and the Joint Office of Energy and
Transportation Transit Technical Assistance page.

ZEBs and Spare Ratios

Q. My agency is concerned about the spare ratio impact of purchasing new zero-emission buses. What if more electric buses are needed
during peak period than for our diesel/CNG powered fleets?

A. First, FTA's 20% spare ratio requirement applies to fleets of 50 or more fixed route buses. Smaller fleets do not have a fixed percentage, but
the ratio should be reasonable.

Second, the spare ratio requirement applies at the time of a grant application to ensure the buses to be procured are needed. If an agency
anticipates that it may temporarily (up to 2 years) deviate from the spare ratio requirement with the purchase of new vehicles, it can seek
approval for the deviation from its FTA Regional office.

Third, if an agency needs more electric buses operating than diesel buses during its peak service, -that becomes its new base. For example, if
previously a grantee had 100 diesel buses operating in maximum fixed route service, it could have 20 spares for a total of 120 buses. If it needs
110 electric buses operating in maximum fixed route service, it can have 22 spares, for a total of 132 buses.

Finally, FTA permits grantees to retain vehicles that have met their useful life in contingency fleets, which do not count towards a grantee’s spare
ratio. Contingency fleets are permitted for emergency use and specifically for the introduction of zero-emission vehicles.

See FTA's Spare Ratio page for additional FAQs.

Bus Grant Set Aside for Workforce Development

Q. How much does my agency need to dedicate to workforce development activities when applying for zero-emission buses under the
Buses and Bus Facilities or Low or No Emission Competitive Programs?

A. Transit agencies are encouraged to discuss training needs with their workforce and to develop training plans in collaboration with unions and
other workforce representatives, as well as with workforce boards, community colleges, and other workforce organizations.

For transit agencies seeking Buses and Bus Facilities or Low-No funding for any project related to zero-emission vehicles (including vehicles,
facilities, equipment, etc.), five percent of the total requested Federal amount attributable to zero-emission project components, including the
workforce development activities but not including the required local share, must be used for workforce development unless the recipient
certifies a smaller percentage is necessary to carry out their fleet transition plan. The dedicated five percent is to retrain the existing workforce
and develop the workforce of the future, including registered apprenticeships and other joint labor-management training programs, as outlined
in the applicant's Zero-Emission Transition Plan, as well as supportive services.

Applicants must identify the proposed use of workforce development funds in the project proposal and identify them separately in the project
budget. The amounts are additional, not a take-down, from other eligible project expenses. For example, if an application includes a Federal
request of $95,000 for total capital costs of zero-emission vehicles and associated equipment, an additional Federal request of $5,000 should be
included in the budget for workforce development expenses for a total Federal request of $100,000. The local share for the vehicles, equipment,
and workforce development is in addition to the $100,000 Federal request.





Useful Life Benchmarks

Q. Are there minimum useful life requirements for components procured with a bus—such as batteries, fare card readers, cameras, or
chargers—which may be obsolete before the rest of the bus has served its useful life?

A. Per FTA's Award Management Requirements Circular 5010.1E, the 12-year minimum useful life applies to the vehicle as a whole - not specific
parts or supporting components like a charger.

Security cameras, fare-card readers, etc. may be replaced as needed and are eligible for assistance under most FTA formula programs, such as
the urbanized area or rural formula programs.

Transit agencies should consider whether it makes more sense to procure these items separately from the vehicle purchase so that the
technology is standardized across the agency and vehicle make/models. Some agencies prefer to work directly through and contract with a
technology provider rather than having a vehicle manufacturer(s) as a middle party.

Q. My agency was an early adopter of battery electric, before the technology matured, and is having difficulty maintaining the
technology through its minimum useful life. What should my agency do?

A. Transit agencies should first seek all appropriate recourses from the vehicle manufacturer, including claims under any warranties. If all
recourses have been exhausted, transit agencies should discuss other options with their FTA Regional Office.

Q. What are the expected minimum useful life requirements for different types of buses?
A. Per FTA's Award Management Requirements Circular 5010.1E, the minimum useful life requirements are as follows:

Buses:

o Large, heavy-duty transit buses including over-the-road buses (approximately 35' - 40' or larger including articulated buses): At least 12
years of service or an accumulation of at least 500,000 miles.

¢ Small size, heavy-duty transit buses: At least 10 years or an accumulation of at least 350,000 miles.

¢ Medium-size, medium-duty transit buses: At least seven years or an accumulation of at least 200,000 miles.

o Medium-size, light-duty transit buses: At least five years or an accumulation of at least 150,000 miles.

Light Duty Vehicles:

Other light-duty vehicles used as equipment or to transport passengers (revenue service), such as regular and specialized vans, sedans, and light-
duty buses including all bus models exempt from bus testing under 49 CFR part 665:

o At least four years or an accumulation of at least 100,000 miles.

Leasing

Q. Is Capital Leasing of Certain Zero Emission Vehicle Components and Removable Power Sources allowable?

A. The Fixing America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act Section 3019(c) included language on leasing arrangements that highlights capital
leasing procedures and requirements for rolling stock, related equipment, and the leasing of zero emission vehicle components. Under the
leasing program, grantees can acquire removable power sources such as batteries or fuel cells separately through a capital lease.

The leasing of the removable power source should not be included as part of the overall cost of the vehicle if the removable power source was
acquired using a capital lease separate from the acquisition of the vehicle.

Other Topics

Q. Only one transit vehicle manufacturer submitted a proposal for my agency’s RFP. Do | need to take any actions or provide
documentation to FTA to confirm an open and competitive procurement process?

A. Yes, even though you received only one response, your documentation must support your efforts to solicit known sources. This should include
a review of the solicitation notice and your Request for Proposal to ensure the solicitation was not unnecessarily restrictive. Also, your file
documentation should state you followed up with all sources that requested the solicitation and asked why they did not propose.

Q. My agency would like to issue a single RFP for buses with different propulsion methods (e.g., some CNG, some battery electric). Can
we do that?
A. Yes you can.

Q. Can my transit agency procure an indefinite quantity of vehicles?
A. Yes, a transit agency can procure an indefinite quantity of vehicles by specifying a minimum order and a potential maximum order in its
contract. Some agencies further allocate their order quantities by contract year.

In all cases, a recipient may contract only for its current and reasonably expected needs, and may not add excessive quantities to its contracts
with the intention of assigning those contract rights to another entity at a later date.

Some recipients may have difficulty projecting their available funds far into the future. Nonetheless, recipients should realize that extreme
spreads between minimum and maximum orders (e.g., minimum order of 10 buses, with a potential maximum of 200 buses) make it difficult for
vendors to plan accordingly, and may cause the recipient to miss out on more advantageous pricing that could come from guaranteed orders.
Therefore, FTA encourages recipients carefully to consider their actual likely orders and structure their contracts as nearly as possible to that
likelihood.





Recipients with small needs should consider procuring off of a State schedule, or combining their orders in a joint procurement, to reduce
administrative burdens and present a more attractive order volume.

Q. My agency would like to purchase an extended battery warranty for our battery electric bus order. Is the extended warranty an
eligible capital cost?
A. Yes.

Last updated: Wednesday, February 7, 2024
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SECTION 3: TYPES OF CONTRACTS

3.2.15 Buy America — For any FTA assisted project, the steel, iron, and
manufactured products acquired for use in the construction project
must be produced in the United States, unless FTA has granted a
waiver. See 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j); 49 C.F.R. part 66l. FTA cautions that
its Buy America regulations are complex and different from the Federal
“Buy American Act” regulations in the Federal Acquisition Regulation
(FAR) at 48 C.F.R. chapter I, subchapter D, part 25, subparts 25.1 and
25.2. Recipients can obtain detailed information on FTA’'s Buy America
regulation at the Federal Transit Administration’s Buy America website.

3.2.16 Accessibility — Facilities to be used in public transportation service must
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 US.C. § 12101 et seq.; DOT
regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),”
49 C.F.R. part 37; and Joint Access Board/DOT regulations, “Americans with
Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36
C.FR. part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. part 38. Notably, DOT incorporated by reference
into Appendix A of its regulations at 49 C.F.R. part 37 the Access Board’s
“Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines” (ADAAG), revised
July 2004, which include accessibility guidelines for buildings and facilities. DOT
also added specific provisions to Appendix A of 49 C.F.R. part 37 modifying the
ADAAG with the result that buildings and facilities must comply with both the
ADAAG and the DOT amendments.

3.3 Rolling Stock Contracts

The term “rolling stock” applies to vehicles used to transport passengers and
includes buses, vans, sedans, railcars, locomotives, trolley cars, ferryboats, and
other vehicles used for guideways and inclined planes. Light duty vehicles such
as vans, sedans, and pick-up trucks used for administrative and maintenance
purposes are considered equipment. Light duty vehicles used to transport
passengers are considered rolling stock.

FTA recipients are permitted to use all of the following procurement methods as
permitted by state and local laws for acquiring rolling stock.

3.3.1  Solicitation or Invitation for Bids or Proposals — Most recipients likely will
acquire their rolling stock through procurements in the open market
that involve the typical standard bidding and proposal procedures.
Recipients may contract only for their current and reasonably expected
public transportation needs and may not add quantities or options to
third party rolling stock contracts solely for the purpose of permitting
assignment to another party at a later date.

3.3.2  Joint Procurements — The Uniform Guidance (2 C.F.R. Section 200.318(e))
states that recipients are “encouraged to enter into state and local
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intergovernmental agreements or inter-entity agreements, where
appropriate, for procurement or use of common or shared goods and
services.” FTA refers to such procurements as “joint procurements.”
FTA encourages joint procurements in which two or more grantees
issue a single solicitation document and enter into a single contract with
a vendor or vendors for rolling stock in a fixed quantity, which may be
expressed with both a total minimum and total maximum. Unlike a State
or nonprofit cooperative procurement contract (discussed below), a
joint procurement does not permit non-parties to participate in the
contract except through the assignment of options. Joint procurements
offer the advantage of obtaining goods and services that better meet the
needs of each participating recipient than those goods and services likely
to be available through an assignment of another recipient’s contract
rights.

Like all solicitations, joint procurements must be tailored to the specific
quantities that participants anticipate needing, and are cautioned to not
inflate the maximum quantity of vehicles so that other recipients may
“piggyback” on the contract later. At a minimum, the maximum quantity
available under the contract should bare a reasonable relationship to
the recipients’ number of peak service vehicles. For example, a joint
procurement with a maximum quantity of 600 buses likely would not

be reasonable if the combined number of vehicles in peak service of the
participants in the joint procurement is only 75 buses. The parties to a
joint procurement can agree to share responsibility for different portions
of the process, e.g., one recipient may prepare the technical specification
and another prepares and conducts the solicitation process. As stated

in FTA Circular 4220.IF, “Participation in a joint procurement, however,
does not relieve any participating recipient from the requirements

and responsibilities it would have if it were procuring the property or
services itself, and does not relinquish responsibility for the actions

of other participants merely because the primary administrative
responsibility for a particular action resides in an entity other than in
itself. All elements of the procurement should be subject to the review
and approval of all participants. Each participant should have the right to
take part in the evaluation and selection process.”

Notwithstanding the single contract award nature of a joint
procurement, purchasers in a joint procurement may award
individual contracts for their particular needs as long as those
contracts reflect the terms and conditions in the joint procurement
competitive solicitation and the proposal that was submitted by the
winning contractor. One approach that has been used for joint bus
procurements is for the lead agency to award the basic contract with
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pricing, specifications, terms and conditions, etc., and then to have the
participating agencies issue individual purchase orders against the basic
contract as funding becomes available to the agencies during the life of
the contract. The purchase orders would reflect the basic contract unit
prices and reference the basic contract for other terms and conditions.

Exercise of Options — A recipient may use its own contract options with
the following limitations:

Consistency with the Underlying Contract — The terms and conditions of
the option must be substantially similar to the terms and conditions of
the option as stated in the original contract at the time it was awarded.

Price — The recipient may not exercise an option unless it has
determined that the option price is better than prices available in the
market, or that when it intends to exercise the option, the option is
more advantageous than what can be obtained in the open market.

* Awards Treated as Sole Source Procurements — The following actions

constitute sole source awards and recipients must be able to justify
the use of a non-competitive award, i.e., a sole source procurement,
before it enters into a contract.

- Failure to Evaluate Options before Awarding the Underlying Contract — If
a contract has one or more options and those options were not
evaluated in determining the low bid for the original contract award,
exercising those options after contract award will result in a sole
source award. This means that the original contract award must be
made on the total price of all items, both base and option, even if
the base items’ prices being offered by the overall low bidder are
higher than those offered by another bidder.

- Negotiating a Lower Option Price — Exercising an option after the
recipient has negotiated a lower or higher price will also result in a
sole source award unless that price can be reasonably determined
from the terms of the original contract, or that price results from
Federal actions that can be reliably measured, such as changes in
Federal prevailing labor rates, for example.

Acquisition Through Assigned Contract Rights/Piggybacking — Recipients may
find it useful to acquire contract options through assignment by another
recipient. This practice also is known as “piggybacking.” A recipient
that obtains contractual rights through assignment may use these rights
after determining: (l) that the original contract price remains fair and
reasonable; (2) that the original contract provisions comply with all
applicable Federal requirements; and (3) that the assigning recipient
originally procured quantities necessary for their needs (i.e., they did
not procure unreasonably large quantities). Before proceeding with the
assignment, the recipient seeking the assignment must review the original
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contract to be sure that the quantities the assigning recipient acquired,
together with the quantities the acquiring recipient seeks, do not exceed
the amounts available under the assigning recipient’s contract. Recipients
do not need to perform a second price analysis if one was performed

for the original contract. FTA does, however, expect the recipient to
determine whether the contract price or prices that were established
under the original agreement are still fair and reasonable. Also, recipients
using assigned contract rights are separately responsible for ensuring that
the contractor complies with FTA’s Buy America requirements for the
assigned quantities. Finally, recipients should be mindful that piggybacking
on contracts with the pre- FAST Act domestic content requirement of
more than 60 percent may be restricted as well. For further information
on Buy America and piggybacking, please consult FTA’s website’s Buy
America page.

State Cooperative Purchasing Contracts — Under Section 3019 of the FAST
Act, grantees may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from a
State cooperative procurement contract. A “cooperative procurement
contract” means a contract entered into between a State government
or eligible nonprofit entities and | or more vendors under which the
vendors agree to provide an option to purchase rolling stock and related
equipment to multiple participants. The contract term for a cooperative
procurement contract may be for an initial term of not more than two
years and may include three optional extensions of one year each. A lead
procurement agency or lead nonprofit entity in such a procurement may
charge participants in the contract no more than | percent of the total
value of the contract.

Under prior law, FTA referred to these types of State contracts
as “State purchasing schedules” and, as such, were only available
to recipients within that State. Under the FAST Act, a grantee
may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from any State’s
cooperative procurement contract or schedule.

State cooperative purchasing contracts or state schedules are subject
to federal requirements, including, but not limited to, full and open
competition, no geographic preferences, Buy America, and bus testing,
and must include all FTA required clauses and certifications with its
purchase orders issued under the State contract. Pursuant to Section
3019 of the FAST Act, recipients may purchase from another State’s
schedule.

Capital Lease — Federal funds may be used to lease instead of buy rolling
stock, and leases are considered third party contracts. Notably, Buy
America requirements apply to capital leases. The FAST Act made
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several changes to Federal transit law as it relates to capital leases;
recipients should reach out to their FTA regional office for assistance if
contemplating a capital lease of rolling stock.

Special Contract Provisions for Rolling Stock Contracts — The following
requirements may affect rolling stock procurements:

* Accessibility — Rolling stock must comply with the accessibility

requirements of DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for
Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 C.F.R. part 37, and Joint
Access Board/DOT regulations, “Americans with Disabilities (ADA)
Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 C.F.R. part
[192 and 49 C.F.R. part 38.

* Transit Vehicle Manufacturer Compliance with DBE Requirements — Before

a transit vehicle manufacturer (TVM) may submit a bid or proposal

to provide vehicles to be financed with FTA assistance, 49 C.F.R. §
26.49 requires the TVM to submit a certification that it has complied
with FTA’'s DBE requirements. FTA’s website contains a list of current
certified TVMs and it is a best practice to confirm a TVMs certification
with this list. If a TVM is not on the FTA list, recipients should contact
the civil rights officer in their region before awarding the contract.

* Minimum Useful Life — FTA requires each recipient to maintain

satisfactory continuing control of FTA assisted property. For buses
and certain other vehicles, FTA has established minimum service life
policies that may affect the quantity of vehicles that the recipient may
acquire. See the most recent version of FTA Circular 5010.1, “Grant
Management Requirements,” which address minimum useful life for
vehicles.

* Spare Ratios — All FTA assistance for third party procurements must
be limited to property and services the recipient will use in the near
future. Generally, FTA will not approve acquisition of an excessive
number of spare vehicles not regularly used in public transportation
service. See the most recent version of FTA Circular 5010.1, “Grant
Management Requirements,” for additional information.

* Air Pollution and Fuel Economy — Each third party contract to acquire
rolling stock must include provisions to ensure compliance with
applicable Federal air pollution control and fuel economy regulations,
such as EPA regulations, “Control of Air Pollution from Mobile
Sources,” 40 C.F.R. part 85; EPA regulations, “Control of Air Pollution
from New and In-Use Motor Vehicles and New and In-Use Motor
Vehicle Engines,” 40 C.F.R. part 86; and EPA regulations, “Fuel
Economy of Motor Vehicles,” 40 C.F.R. part 600.

* Bus Testing — Each third party contract to acquire a new bus model
or a bus with significant alterations to an existing model must include
provisions to assure compliance with applicable requirements of 49
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U.S.C. § 5318, and FTA regulations, “Bus Testing,” 49 C.F.R. part 665.
Buses must achieve a passing score on eight performance measures in
order to be eligible for FTA funding.

In-State Dealers — The recipient may not limit its third party bus
procurements to its in-State dealers, 49 U.S.C. § 5325(i). Although FTA
respects State licensing requirements, FTA is prohibited by law from
providing assistance to support bus procurements that have the result
of limiting competition to entities that have been able to obtain a State
license.

Basis for Contract Award — As permitted by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(f), the
recipient may award a third party contract for rolling stock based on
initial capital costs, or based on performance, standardization, life
cycle costs, and other factors, or by selection through a competitive
procurement process.

Time Limits for Options on Rolling Stock Contracts — Under 49 U.S.C.

§ 5325(e)(1)(A), a recipient may enter into a multiyear contract to
acquire buses or replacement parts with options not exceeding

a total of five (5) years to buy additional buses or replacement

parts. Under 49 U.S.C. § 5325(e)(1)(B), a recipient may enter into

a multiyear contract to acquire railcars or replacement parts with
options not exceeding a total of seven (7) years to buy additional
railcars or replacement parts provided that such option does not
allow for significant changes or alterations to the rolling stock.

FTA interprets these five and seven year periods as covering the
recipient’s “material requirements” for rolling stock and replacement
needs from the first day when the contract becomes effective to its
“material requirements” at the end of the fifth or seventh year, as
applicable. In the case of rolling stock, which frequently cannot be
delivered expeditiously, FTA recognizes that a recipient’s “material
requirements” for rolling stock will necessarily precede its actual need
to put that rolling stock to use in public transportation service. This
means that the contract may not have options for more rolling stock
and replacement parts than a recipient’s material requirements for the
applicable five or seven-year period. This does not mean the recipient
must obtain delivery, acceptance, or even fabrication in five or seven
years. Instead it means only that FTA limits a contract to purchasing
no more than the recipient’s material requirements for rolling stock or
replacement parts for five or seven years based on the effective date of
the contract. However, rolling stock options must be exercised within
the original contract term.

Buy America — When procuring rolling stock, recipients must ensure
that the cost of the components and subcomponents produced in
the United States meets the following threshold requirements: (i) for
fiscal years 2016 and 2017, more than 60 percent of the cost of all
components of the rolling stock; (i) for fiscal years 2018 and 2019,
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more than 65 percent of the cost of all components of the rolling
stock; and (iii) for fiscal year 2020 and each fiscal year thereafter, more
than 70 percent of the cost of all components of the rolling stock.
Additionally, final assembly of the rolling stock must occur in the
United States. See 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j) (2) (C). For further information
about implementation of this requirement, see FTA’s Federal Register
Notice of Policy on the Implementation of the Phased Increase in
Domestic Content under the Buy America Waiver for Rolling Stock
and Notice of Public Interest Waiver of Buy America Domestic
Content Requirements for Rolling Stock Procurement in Limited
Circumstances, Sept. |, 2016. Please click here for a link to the Federal
Register notice.

* Pre-Award and Post Delivery Reviews for Rolling Stock — FTA requires
that recipients purchasing revenue passenger rolling stock undertake
reviews of the rolling stock before award of the bid, during
manufacture, and following delivery of the rolling stock. Applicants
seeking to acquire rolling stock must certify that they will comply with
FTA’s pre-award and post-delivery review requirements. See 49 U.S.C.
§ 5323(m) and FTA regulation, “Pre-Award and Post-Delivery Audits of
Rolling Stock Purchases,” 49 C.F.R. part 663.

Recipients can obtain detailed information on FTA’'s Buy America regulation at
the FTA website’s Buy America Page.

3.4 Procurement Methods

Recipients may choose from the following procurement methods, provided they
comply with the recipient’s State and local laws and regulations. Micro and small
purchase thresholds may vary by State and local governments. If a recipient has
the legal authority under State law to implement a micro-purchase and small
purchase program, they must comply with their State and local requirements. If
a State has lower threshold requirements than FTA has established, the recipient
must comply with those State levels. However, the FTA threshold is a ceiling,
and procurements using FTA funds that exceed the FTA threshold will not be
considered micro-purchase or small purchases, even if the State threshold is
higher.

There is no Federal requirement that a recipient use the sealed bid or
competitive proposal method for any of its federally funded procurements. There
is a mixture of history and tradition behind the use of sealed bidding in the public
sector that is frequently embodied in legislative requirements at both the Federal
and State levels. Although Federal legislative requirements mandating the use of
this method have been relaxed in recent years, many States still require its use
for many commodities or services being procured and it is still the “preferred”
method for the acquisition of construction services in the public sector, including
by FTA. Sealed bidding is perceived to be a faster, more objective method of
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Good Afternoon,
Thank you for confirming receipt. | will be happy to answer any questions that you may have.
Thank you.

Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra | Bid & Contract Specialist

Phone: 510-264-3811

Email mgonzalez@gillig.com | www.gillig.com
HQ 510.264.5000 | Sales 510.785.1500 | Parts 800.735.1500 | Service 510.264.5073

anme

CONFIDENTIALITY WARNING: This email may contain proprietary or confidential information and is for the sole use
of the intended recipient(s). Any unauthorized use or disclosure of this communication is prohibited. If you believe
that you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete it from your system.

From: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2024 12:13 PM

To: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>; Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldan illig.com>
Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

Good afternoon Maribel.

| have received the USB drive through FedEx.
I'll review the documents and get with you if there’s any questions. Thank you.

Thank you,
Eloisa Mascorro
956-795-2288 Ext. 284

From: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 4:41 PM
To: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>; Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>

Cc: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>
Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from
unknown senders.

Good Afternoon Eloisa,

| will be sending out a USB containing the State of Washington contract to your attention for FedEx overnight delivery.
Please let me know if you need anything further.

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

Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 1:37 PM

To: Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>

Cc: Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>

Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

Thank you, Mr. Saldana.
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Physical address is as follows:

Eloisa Mascorro

1301 Farragut St. 3 Floor
Laredo, Texas 78040

Thank you,
Eloisa Mascorro
956-795-2288 Ext. 284

From: Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>
Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 3:28 PM

To: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Cc: Robert J. Garza <rjgarza@ci.laredo.tx.us>; Monica Garcia <mgarcia5@ci.laredo.tx.us>; Maribel Gonzalez-Becerra <Maribel.Gonzalez@gillig.com>
Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from
unknown senders.

Good afternoon, Eloisa.
We understand the situation with cybersecurity and the City of Laredo TX apprehension to the link.
Please provide a physical address and we will Fed-Ex a jump drive with the documents.

Thanks in advance.

Joe Saldana | Regional Sales Manager

Mobile: 510-303-0202

Email | il | www.gillig.com
HQ 510.264.5000 | Sales 510.785.1500 | Parts 800.735.1500 | Service 510.264.5073

GCILLIG
anm

From: Eloisa Mascorro <Em rr i.laredo.tx.us>

Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 12:55 PM

To: Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>

Cc: Robert J. Garza <rjgarza@ci.laredo.tx.us>; Monica Garcia <mgarcia5@ci.laredo.tx.us>
Subject: RE: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

Good afternoon Joe,

Would you be able to send us the attachments (documents) instead of the link?
| am getting the below error message and our IT Department is giving us a hard time unblocking the site.
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This site is blocked due to content filtering.

gillig box.com

> Administrative Bypass

"This URL, gillig.box.com has been blocked due to Internet use City of
Laredo policies.

Please send an e-mail to our help desk at help@ci.laredo.tx.us for
assistance"

This site was blocked due to the following categories: Online Storage and Backup

> Diagnostic Info

Thank you,
Eloisa Mascorro
956-795-2288 Ext. 284

From: Robert J. Garza <rjgarza@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 9:23 AM

To: Eloisa Mascorro <Emascorro@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Cc: Monica Garcia <mgarcia5@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Subject: FW: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

FYI

From: Joe Saldana <Joe.Saldana@gillig.com>

Sent: Monday, January 8, 2024 9:22 AM

To: Robert J. Garza <rjgarza@ci.laredo.tx.us>

Subject: *State of Washington Contract Information* 01/08/2024

CAUTION: This email originated from outside your organization. Exercise caution when opening attachments or clicking links, especially from
unknown senders.
Good morning, RJ.

Per our conversation attached is the State of Washington Contract Information.

Below you will find a Box link to the State of Washington Contract, this link contains all the documents you need and will allow you
view, download and print. If you have any issues downloading, please advise.


mailto:rjgarza@ci.laredo.tx.us
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As always, let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information.
BOX LINK:

https://qgillig.box.com/s/jbmwaa77cejpcug2ebmzbv95gowlx4zp

Joe Saldana | Regional Sales Manager

Mobile: 510-303-0202

Email j dll | www.gillig.com
HQ 510.264.5000 | Sales 510.785.1500 | Parts 800.735.1500 | Service 510.264.5073
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